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Joseph Conant Avery 

b. 09 Jun 1817 Luzerne County, PA 

d. 16 Jun 1876 Benton County, OR 

buried Crystal Lake Cemetery, Corvallis, Benton County, Oregon 

 

m. 13 Mar 1841 Wyoming, PA 

 

Martha Marsh 

b. 14 Jan 1824 Luzerne County, PA 

d. 04 Jan 1911 

buried Crystal Lake Cemetery, Corvallis, Benton County, Oregon 

d/o Daniel C. Marsh and Esther Pettebone  
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Note; References in the following to "Mr." Avery do not necessarily refer to J.C. Avery as there 

were other Avery families in the area during the 1850s. 
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 "J. C. AVERY. History recounts the deeds and 

records the indebtedness of the state to J. C. 

Avery—one of the honored and prominent 

pioneers of the Willamette valley, whose efforts 

for the upbuilding of the state were of the most 

helpful character. Tales of heroism have been the 

theme of song and story throughout the ages, and 

there is no greater heroism shown than that of the 

men who, reared in comfortable homes, 

accustomed to all the privileges and conveniences 

of life, have come to the wild western districts 

and braved hardships untold. They have also been 

menaced by the danger of death at the hand of the 

treacherous Indian. Volumes have been written, 

yet the story of the pioneers has never been 

adequately told. They deserve all praise and 

honor, and the mighty states of the west, with 

their splendid improvements, enterprises and 

tokens of civilization, are monuments to their 

memory. 

     Corvallis owes its existence to the efforts and labors of J. C. Avery, who laid broad and deep 

the foundation for the present prosperity and progress of the city. Mr. Avery was a native of 

Pennsylvania, born in Luzerne county, June 9, 1817. His father, Cyrus Avery, was a native of 

Connecticut and removed to the Wyoming valley of the Keystone state, where he followed 

farming. He died at Tunkhannock, Pa. His son, J. C. Avery, was educated in the schools of 

Wilkesbarre, Pa., and when a young man removed to Stark county. Ill., where he engaged in 

surveying, and was also a real estate and loan agent. He was married March 13, 1841, near 

Wyoming, Pa., to Miss Martha Marsh, who was born in Kingston, Luzerne county, January 

14. 1824, a daughter of Daniel C. Marsh, who was a native of Connecticut and removed to 

Kingston, where he engaged in teaching. He wedded Esther Pettebone, also a native of 

Connecticut, and in their early married life they removed to New York, and afterward to the 

Wyoming valley. Mrs. Marsh was a daughter of Oliver Pettebone, who was a pioneer of 

Pennsylvania, and lived there throughout the period of the Indian troubles. His brother was killed 

in the Wyoming massacre. Mr. Avery removed to Illinois in 1834, not long after the Black Hawk 

war, when the state was wild, unbroken prairie.  There Mr. Avery carried on farming until 1845, 

when he made the long and hazardous journey across the plains to Oregon and secured a claim at 

the junction of the Willamette and Marys rivers. In 1846 he moved onto this and built a log 

cabin, thus establishing a home for his family. In the following year he was joined by his wife 

and children. They had traveled with a company commanded by Captain Sawyer, who had come 

with Mr. Avery to Oregon in 1845. Captain Sawyer then returned to Illinois for his family, and 

Mr. Avery arranged that his wife and children should travel with the captain's party when he 

again made the journey. It would have taken Mr. Avery eighteen months to go to Illinois and 

return with his family and he was afraid his claim might be forfeited in that time.  Mrs. Avery 

had an outfit consisting of a five yoke ox-team and a wagon filled with provisions.  She also 



brought two milch cows and was exactly six months upon the way, being met in eastern Oregon 

by her husband, who then guided the party by way of the Barlow route over the Cascade 

mountains to his claim at Corvallis.  They had started April 2, from Stark county, Ill, had crossed 

the Mississippi at Burlington. Iowa ; the Missouri river at St. Joseph, and had proceeded up the 

Platte river to the Oregon trail.  After crossing the Missouri the train numbered eighty wagons, 

but from Independence Rock only six wagons came on to Benton county, arriving here on 

October 2, 1847. 

     In the fall of 1848, following the discovery of gold, Mr. Avery went to California, where he 

engaged in mining. He spent the succeeding winter at home, but in the spring of 1849 returned to 

the mines, where he remained until the autumn of that year, making a few thousand dollars.  He 

then returned, bringing with him a stock of general merchandise which he had purchased in 

San Francisco and shipped to Portland, thence up the Willamette to where Corvallis now stands. 

This was the first store of the place. The following year Mr. Avery laid out the town and called it 

Marysville, but because of there being a town in California of the same name some confusion 

was occasioned and the Oregon town changed its name to Corvallis—the core or center of the 

valley. He was instrumental in securing the establishment of the post office and served as the 

first postmaster. He was also the general postal agent for Oregon and Washington. 

     Mr. Avery continued to engage in merchandising at Corvallis until within four or five years of 

his death. He rented his land and laid out additions to the town, which have become the principal 

part of the city. He also built several stores and was always active in the improvement of the city 

which he founded and which owes much of' its early progress to his practical efforts. He was 

greatly interested in the building of the Corvallis & Eastern Railroad, but died before its 

completion. He was chosen, together with J. F. Miller and B. F. Doughet, to make the selection 

of a site for the Oregon Agricultural College, and their choice fell largely upon the broad 

meadows of Lake county, the best lands then in the state open for selection. He took a very 

active part in the building up of the college, and his efforts were not without result.   

     Unto Mr. and Mrs. Avery were born eight children, of whom six are living, Charles and 

James C. having died in Corvallis. The others are Punderson, a prominent citizen here; 

Napoleon; George; Mrs. Florence Jones; Mrs. Frances Helm; and Gertrude, the wife of J. B. 

Irvine. 

     Mr. Avery was a Master Mason and his life was in harmony with the beneficent spirit of the 

craft. In politics he was always a Democrat, and he was twice elected to represent his district in 

the state legislature, where he served with ability,  and during that time he had the name of 

Marysville changed to Corvallis. He figured prominently in the politics of the county for a 

quarter of a century, and he had many warm and true friends and few enemies. He died June 

16, 1876, but though a quarter of a century has since come and gone he is yet remembered by 

many who knew him and his memory will ever be revered as the founder of Corvallis. He was a 

man of noble and generous impulses and a warm heart, noted for his deeds of charity, his acts of 

kindness and hospitality so freely extended to the suffering emigrants in an early day. Mrs. 

Avery still survives her husband and lives at the old home. She is a member of the Baptist 

Church and is one of the brave pioneer women who shared with the husbands and fathers 

in the hardships and trials incident to the settlement of the northwest." [Portrait and Biographical 

Record of the Willamette Valley p. 869-70] 

 



     "Hon. J.C. Avery, deceased.—There are few men in Benton county whose names are more 

familiar to the people at large than that of J. C. Avery. He was truly one of the Argonauts of 

Oregon. 

     This gentleman was born in Lucerne county, Pennsylvania, June 9, 1817. His parents were 

natives of Connecticut and descendants of the early and influential families of that State. He was 

reared to manhood in the State of his birth, where he received a liberal education and 

subsequently moved to Stark county, Illinois. From there in 1845, Mr. Avery came to Oregon, 

his wife joining him two years later in 1847.  He took up a claim in Benton county consisting of 

640 acres in 1846, where the city of Corvallis is now located.  He went to California in 1848, at 

the time of Marshall's great discovery, but after engaging in mining on the north fork of the 

American river for a time, he returned to his claim. The first lots of the present city of Corvallis 

were surveyed and sold by Mr. Avery, in 1849, and as the county settled up, portions of his 

claims were surveyed and sold right along. Mrs. Avery still owns 180 acres adjacent to this city, 

about one-half of which is cultivated in grain. She also owns city property. Mr. Avery, during his 

lifetime was connected with mercantile pursuits and was a progressive, influential citizen. His 

life was a singularly industrious and busy one, but in spite of all his business interests he always 

was ready to lend a helping hand to whatever promised to benefit the city. He was appointed by 

President Pierce Postal Agent for the district embracing Oregon and Washington Territory, in  

1853, and served for several years. He was chosen to represent Benton county in the State 

Legislature on two different occasions and his services were rendered with fidelity and honesty. 

As a result of his many sterling qualities his memory is held in the highest estimation by all who 

knew him. His death occurred June 16, 1876. 

     Mr. Avery was married in Stark county, Illinois, to Miss Martha Marsh, March 13, 1841. 

She was a native of Pennsylvania and a daughter of Daniel and Esther (Pettibone) Marsh, both of 

whom were born in Connecticut and removed to Illinois, where they died in 1836.  Mr. and Mrs. 

Avery had twelve children, six of whom are still living, namely: Punderson; Florence, now Mrs. 

George Jones; Francis A., now Mrs. George Helm; George W.; Napolian B. and Gertrude, now 

Mrs. B. F. Irvine. 

     Mr. Avery was truly a representative Oregonian and his wife is an estimable lady, who aided 

her talented and illustrious husband in his undertakings and is now enjoying her life, surrounded 

by the comforts her hands helped to earn." [An Illustrated History of Oregon by Hines p. 458-9] 

 

 

     "J. C. AVERY. No history of Corvallis would be complete without extended and prominent 

reference to J. C. Avery, the founder and promoter of the town. He was closely associated with 

the progress and upbuilding of the state in many ways and was one of the honored pioneers to 

whom Oregon owes a debt of gratitude for what they accomplished here. He was born in 

Luzerne county. Pennsylvania, June 9. 1817, a son of Cyrus Avery, who was a native of 

Connecticut, whence he went to the Wyoming valley of Pennsylvania, there following farming. 

He died at Tunkhannock that state. 

     His son. J. C. Avery, was a pupil in the schools of Wilkes-Barre and when a young man went 

to Stark county, Illinois, where he engaged in surveying and in the real estate and loan business. 

He was married near Wyoming, Pennsylvania. March 13, 1841, to Miss Martha Marsh, whose 

birth occurred at Kingston, Luzerne county. January 14. 1824. She was a daughter of Daniel C. 

Marsh, a native of Connecticut, who removed to Kingston, where he engaged in teaching.  His 

wife, who bore the maiden name of Esther Pettebone, was also born in the Charter Oak state and 



soon after their marriage they removed to New York and later to the' Wyoming valley of 

Pennsylvania. Mrs. Marsh was a daughter of Oliver Pettebone, a pioneer of the Keystone state, 

living there through the period of Indian troubles, his brother having been killed in the Wyoming 

massacre. 

     In 1834 J.C. Avery became a resident of Illinois, casting in his lot with the pioneers of that 

state.  He there carried on farming until 1845, when he started across the plains to Oregon, 

making the long and arduous journey to the Pacific coast for the purpose of finding a location for 

his family. He entered a claim of six hundred and forty acres at the junction of the Willamette 

and Mary rivers and took up his abode thereon in 1846 building a log cabin. The following year 

he was joined bv his wife and children, who had traveled westward with the company 

commanded by Captain Sawyer, who was one of the party that had come with Mr. Avery to 

Oregon in 1845. Captain Sawyer then returned to Illinois for his family and Mr. Avery arranged 

that his wife and children should return with the captain's party, for it would have taken him 

eighteen months to go to Illinois and back, and he feared lest his claim might be forfeited in that 

time.  Mrs. Avery's outfit consisted of a five-yoke ox team and a wagon filled with provisions 

She also brought along two milch cows and after traveling for six months reached her 

destination. She was met in eastern Oregon by her husband, who then guided the party over the 

Barlow road. across the Cascades, and settled his family upon his claim at Corvallis. They had 

started on the 2d of April from Stark county, Illinois, and had crossed the Mississippi at 

Burlington, Iowa, the Missouri at St. Joseph and thence proceeded up the Platte river to the 

Oregon trail. Alter crossing the Missouri the train numbered eighty wagons, but from 

Independence Rock only six wagons came on to Benton county, arriving October 2, 1847. 

   When gold was found in California Mr. Avery journeyed southward and engaged in mining in 

that state. He spent the succeeding winter at home but in the spring of 1849 again went to 

California, where he remained through the summer, making a few thousand dollars. Upon the 

return trip be brought with him a stock of general merchandise which he had purchased at San 

Francisco and shipped to Portland, thence up the Willamette to the present site of Corvallis, 

opening the first store in the town. It was not until the following year, however, that the town 

was laid out. He called it Marysville, but some confusion arose over the fact of there being 

another town of the same name in California, so that during his service in the legislature he 

succeeded in having the name changed from Marysville to Corvallis, meaning the core or center 

of the valley.  It was also due to Mr. Avery that the post office was established here and he 

served as its first postmaster. He was also the general postal agent for Oregon and Washington. 

He continued to engage in merchandising at Corvallis until within four or five years of his death. 

He rented part of his ranch and also laid out additions to the town which have become principal 

parts of the city. He built several stores and in many ways contributed to the growth, upbuilding 

and success of the city which he had founded and which today stands as a monument to his 

enterprise and progressive spirit. He was greatly interested in the building of the Corvallis & 

Eastern Railroad but died before its completion. He was chosen a member of the committe of 

three, his associates being J. F. Miller and B. F. Doughet, to make the selection of a site for the 

Oregon Agricultural College. They were attracted by the broad meadows oft Lake county the 

best lands in the state open for selection at that time and Mr. Avery took an active and helpful 

interest in the upbuilding of the college, his labors being very beneficial. His political allegiance 

was always given to the democratic party and he was twice elected to represent his district in the 

state. legislature.  His fraternal relations were with the Masonic order. 



     To Mr. and Mrs. Avery were born eight children of whom six are living, while Charles and 

James C. died in Corvallis. The others are Punderson. Napoleon, George, Mrs. Florence James, 

Mrs. Frances Helm and Mrs. Gertrude Irvine. He died June, 1876, at the age of fifty-nine years 

and Mrs. Avery passed away in January, 1911. Mr. Avery is numbered among the real promoters 

of Oregon's growth and greatness and his name should be inscribed high on the roll of its 

honored citizens." [Centennial History of Oregon by Gaston Vol IV p.879-880] 

 

Children of Joseph Avery and Martha Marsh: 

 

1. Charles Avery 

b. 14 Mar 1842  

d. 31 Mar 1861 

buried Crystal Lake Cemetery, Corvallis, Benton County, Oregon 

 

 

2. Punderson Avery 

b. 1843 

d. 1912 

m. Dec 1864 Elizabeth Martha Mobley 

 

 
 

     "PUNDERSON AVERY. No citizen of Corvallis has so long resided here or is better 

acquainted with its history than Punderson Avery. His business interests have been of a 

character that have largely contributed to its prosperity and advancement, and his record 

has at all times been such as has won for him the good-will and confidence of those with 

whom he has come into contact. Success has crowned his intelligently directed efforts 

and at one time he was actively and extensively engaged in the manufacture of flour but 

is now giving his attention merely to the supervision of his investments. He was born in 

Stark county, Illinois, in 1843, a son of J. C. Avery, who was the founder of Corvallis and 

is mentioned elsewhere in this work. He was four years of age when the mother brought 

her three children to the northwest, the father having preceded them and prepared a home 



for them in Benton county. He had secured a donation claim of six hundred and forty 

acres and it was upon this land that the city of Corvallis was laid out. 

     On the old homestead there, Punderson Avery was reared and as his father was the 

first merchant of the town he, too, early became connected with merchandising. In the 

meantime he had pursued his early education in the district schools and he afterward 

became a student in the Baptist College at McMinnville. He afterward spent eight years 

in his father's store but in 1872 removed to Lake county, where he engaged in the cattle 

business, having a large ranch on which he herded his cattle. He also put up hay and feed 

for the market. He spent fifteen years in the Chewaucan valley of Lake county in the 

cattle business, beginning with a small bunch of cattle—not more than one hundred 

head—but when he retired from the business he was the owner of fifteen hundred head of 

cattle and fifteen hundred acres of land. His father had beenmade one of the commission 

of three, to select a site for the state agricultural college and they had made choice of the 

meadow land in Lake county. While looking over the state they gained considerable 

knowledge concerning favorable locations and the reports which Punderson Avery heard 

concerning Lake county, its rich fields and its promising future, decided him to remove to 

that district.  He bought one thousand acres of the college land which he fenced and 

improved. 

He was living there at the time of the Modoc war and he and other settlers of that locality 

built Fort Chewaucan, which they occupied for four months or until the trouble with the 

Indians had subsided.   

     In 1887 Punderson Avery disposed of his business interests in Lake county and 

returned to Corvallis, where in 1889 he established a mill, forming a partnership with Mr. 

Smith and Mr. Rickard. They built the Benton County Mills and five years later the 

business was incorporated under the name of the Benton County Flouring Mills 

Company, of which Mr. Avery became president.  The mill was erected in 1889 and has 

since been operated by steam power, the plant having a capacity of two hundred and 

twenty barrels per day. From the standpoint of excellence their output was unequalled in 

the state and they received the highest award at the Oregon state fair in 1902 and again, in 

1903, on the Benton and Snow Fall brands. They also won other prizes at different times 

and their manufactured product included not only wheat but also graham flour and 

cereals. The capacity at the outset was one hundred barrels but this was increased with 

the growth of their trade and, improving their property, they became owners of one of the 

largest and best mills in the northwest, thoroughly equipped with modern machinery and 

operated according to most modern methods. In 1906, however, Mr. Avery sold his flour 

mill here and lives now as a retired capitalist. In addition to his milling business he has 

been the owner of two fine farm properties in Benton county devoted to the raising of 

grain and stock, one comprising four hundred acres a mile and a half south of Corvallis, 

while the other of three hundred and twenty acres is about twelve miles south of the city. 

Mr. Avery and his brother have also laid out two additions to Corvallis which are now 

attractive districts of the city. 

     It was here in December, 1864, that Mr. Avery was married to Miss Elizabeth 

Mobley, a native of Missouri, who accompanied her parents to California in early life, 

and in 1860 came with them to Benton county,  Oregon. Her father, William Mobley, 

was a farmer. Mr. and Mrs. Avery have become the parents of five children: Chester, 

engaged in the cattle business in Klamath county; Clarence W., who is a graduate of the 



Oregon Agricultural College and is now manager of the sawmill near Weston, Oregon; 

Mattie, the wife of Professor Fulton, of Corvallis; and Grover and Virgil, both residing on 

their father's farm near Corvallis. 

     Mr. Avery has not only figured prominently in business circles but has also been a 

political leader of his community. In 1870 he was elected treasurer of Benton county and 

served for one term. He was long a member of the city council and for a number of years 

was its president. He has always been a democrat and for many years acted as chairman 

of the county central committee and has served on the state committee.  He also was a 

member of the upper house of the Oregon legislature. He belongs to the Oregon Pioneer 

Association and to the Corvallis Business Men's League.  His wife is a member of the 

Presbyterian church. One of his public acts worthy of mention is that he succeeded in 

getting mountain water for Corvallis while a member 

of the state senate. Previous to that time the town was supplied with river water but now 

an excellent system brings pure mountain water into the city. He remembers the first 

federal court held in Benton county, as it was held in his father's home by Judge C. C. 

Pratt, and the only ones present were his mother and her children, the judge and Jo Meek, 

United States marshal.  The business transacted was the sale of an old boat on the river 

near Oregon City. Not only by reason of his long residence but also of the value of his 

public Services and his creditable business record, Mr. Avery is accounted one of the 

foremost residents of Benton county, honored and esteemed alike by all who know him."  

[The Centennial History of Oregon by Gaston Vol IV p. 812] 

 

     "PUNDERSON AVERY is a capitalist and very successful man who is uniformly 

spoken of in terms of praise, commendation and good will. He is an extensive and 

successful manufacturer of flour and is the leader in this regard in the state. He is now 

serving as president of the city council of Corvallis, and Benton county has profited by 

his efforts in her behalf along many lines. It is, therefore, well that he should be 

mentioned among the representative citizens of the Willamette valley and it is with 

pleasure that we present to our readers this record of his career. 

      Mr. Avery is a native of Stark county, Ill., born in 1843, and is a son of J. C. Avery, 

who was the founder of Corvallis and is represented elsewhere in this work. In the year 

1847 Mrs. Avery came to the northwest to join the father, who had crossed the plains in 

1843. She was accompanied by her three children, Charles, Punderson and Florence, and 

they were met in eastern Oregon by the husband and father, who conducted them by way 

of the Barlow route over the Cascade Mountains to the old town of Marysville, now 

Corvallis. Mr. Avery had secured a donation claim of six hundred and forty acres and 

upon this the city of Corvallis was established. 

      On the old family homestead Punderson Avery of this review was reared and in early 

life became connected with merchandising. He pursued his preliminary education in the 

district schools and afterward became a student in the Baptist College at McMinnville. 

Later he spent eight years in his father's store and in 1872 he removed to Lake county. 

Ore., where he was engaged in the cattle business, having a large range on which he 

herded his cattle and also put up hay and feed for the market. His father, together with 

John F. Miller and B. F. Dougthet, was selected by the state to choose a site for the 

Agricultural College, and made choice of the meadow lands of Lake county. They gained 

considerable knowledge of the state while endeavoring to make a location and Punderson 



Avery, hearing favorable reports of the Lake county land, concluded that he would 

remove to that district and engage in the cattle business. Accordingly, he located there in 

1872 and purchased one thousand acres of the college land which he fenced and 

improved. For fifteen years he remained there, being extensively engaged in the cattle 

business, and success attended his efforts. At the time of the Modoc war he and other 

residents of that locality built Fort Chewaucan which they occupied for four months 

during the Indian troubles. In 1887 he disposed of his business interests in Lake county 

and returned to Corvallis. In 1889 he began the milling business here, forming the present 

company in connection with Mr. Smith and Mr. Rickard. They built the Benton county 

mills and five years later incorporated the business under the name of the Benton County 

Flouring Mills Company, of which Mr. Avery has since been the president. The mill was 

erected in 1889 and has since been operated by steam power. The plant has a capacity of 

two hundred and twenty barrels daily and manufactures flour which is unexcelled in the 

state.  In fact, the firm received the highest award at the Oregon state fair in 1902 and 

again in 1903 on the Benton and Snowfall brands.  Other premiums have been awarded to 

the firm which not only manufacture wheat flour, but also place upon the market graham 

flour and cereals. The business was begun with a capacity of one hundred barrels, but in 

order to meet the increased demand of the trade the capacity was increased to two 

hundred and twenty barrels per day in 1899. The Wagner roller system is used and the 

plant is equipped with all modern facilities, the mill being one of the best in the 

northwest. It is a four-story structure and the power is supplied by a seventy-five-horse-

power engine. The product is shipped to California, South America and the American 

possessions in the Pacific and to the Orient. In addition to his milling property Mr. Avery 

owns two fine farms in Benton county devoted to the raising of grain and stock. One of 

these farms comprises four hundred acres and is situated a mile and a half south of 

Corvallis, while the other comprises three hundred and twenty acres and is about twelve 

miles south of the city. Mr. Avery and his brother laid out two additions to Corvallis, 

most of which has since been sold and improved by the erection of good buildings. 

     In Corvallis Mr. Avery was united in marriage to Miss Elizabeth Mobley, who was 

born in Missouri and went with her parents to California in early life, coming thence to 

Benton county. Ore., in i860. Her father, William Mobley was a farmer by occupation. 

Unto this marriage have been born five children: Chester, who is engaged in the cattle 

business in Lake county; Clarence W., who is a graduate of the Oregon Agricultural 

College and is now engaged in the stock business and is also manager of the Bingham 

Spring, near Pendleton; Mattie, who is now the wife of Professor Fulton of Corvallis; 

Grover and Virgil, who are at home. 

     In 1870 Mr. Avery was elected county treasurer of Benton county and served for one 

term, while for many years he has been a member of the city council of Corvallis and is 

now its president. He has always been a Democrat in politics and for many years was 

chairman of the county committee, and was also a member of the state committee. He 

belongs to the Oregon Pioneer Association and to the Corvallis Business Men's League 

and his wife is a member of the Presbyterian church. He stands today among the 

prominent business men of the Willamette valley. Keen and clearheaded, always busy, 

always careful and conservative in financial matters, moving slowly but surely in every 

transaction, he has few superiors in the steady progress which invariably reaches the 

objective point." [Portrait and Biographical Record of the Willamette Valley p.919-20] 



 

3. Florence Avery 

b. 05 Mary 1845 

d. 20 Jan 1928 

buried Crystal Lake Cemetery, Corvallis, Benton County, Oregon 

m1. 18 Apr 1863 Richard Cummins Johnson 

m2. 08 Jul 1878 George Madison Jones 

 

 

4. Gertrude Avery 

b. c1847 

d. 

m'd J.B.. Irvine 

 

 

5. Frances A. Avery 

b. 01 Feb 1849 

d. 28 Sep 1919 Corvallis, Benton County, Oregon 

buried Masonic Cemetery, Albany, Linn County, Oregon 

m'd George Washington Rea Helm 

 

 

6. George W. Avery 

b. 21 Sep 1850 

d. 12 Nov 1928 Corvallis, Benton County, Oregon 

buried Crystal Lake Cemetery, Corvallis, Benton County, Oregon 

 

 

7. Arthur Avery 

b. 07 Nov 1852 

d. 08 Aug 1854 

buried Crystal Lake Cemetery, Corvallis, Benton County, Oregon 

 

8. James C. Avery 

b. 05 Nov 1854 

d. 16 Apr 1870 

buried Crystal Lake Cemetery, Corvallis, Benton County, Oregon 

 

9. Chatham Avery 

b. Feb 1857 

d. 06 Feb 1863 

buried Crystal Lake Cemetery, Corvallis, Benton County, Oregon 

 

 

10 Napoleon B. Avery 

b. 1859 



d. 1912 

buried Crystal Lake Cemetery, Corvallis, Benton County, Oregon 

 

 

11. Fredric Avery 

b. 01 Oct 1861 

d. 14 Sep 1863 

buried Crystal Lake Cemetery, Corvallis, Benton County, Oregon 

 

 

 

 

 


